

Administered by University of Maine System Office of Strategic Procurement Request for Qualifications (RFQ)

# Factory of the Future Sensor Equipment & Services RFQ #2025-092

Issued Date: June 5, 2025

Response Deadline Date/Time: June 26, 2025, 11:59 p.m. EST

**Response Submission Information:** 

Submitted electronically to UMSResponses@maine.edu Email Subject Line: FoF Sensor Equipment - RFQ#2025-092

# **Response Contact Information:**

Email: UMSResponses@maine.edu

# Table of Contents

	3
1 Definitions, Background, Purpose and Specifications	3
2 General Information	8
3 General Submission Process and Provisions	11
EVALUATION PROCESS AND QUALIFIED VENDOR LIST	12
1 Evaluation Process	
2 Award	
3 Negotiations	
4 Award Protest	
RESPONSE FORMAT REQUIREMENTS	14
1 General Format Instructions	14
2 Response Format Instructions	
Appendix A – University of Maine System Response Cover Page	15
Appendix B – Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification	16
Appendix C – Submission Materials	
	<ol> <li>Definitions, Background, Purpose and Specifications</li></ol>

# **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

### **1.1** Definitions, Background, Purpose and Specifications

#### 1.1.1 Definitions

The University of Maine System will hereinafter be referred to as the "University" or "UMS."

Respondents to this document shall be referred to as "Respondent(s)" or "Respondent".

The Respondent to whom a future Agreement is negotiated and awarded shall be referred to as a "Contractor" or "Vendor."

#### **1.1.2** Background

The Advanced Structures and Composites Center (ASCC), located on the University of Maine campus in Orono, Maine is a national and international leader in commercially scaled next-generation research and development (R&D) on composites materials and structures.

The University is building a laboratory addition to the ASCC that will house a Factory of the Future (FoF). The FoF will be a first of its kind test bed for large format advanced manufacturing and will be comprised of two large research laboratory bays filled with a suite of additive, subtractive, and hybrid robotic manufacturing equipment. The manufacturing processes will be combined with real-time sensing and high-performance-computing for monitoring and control. The FoF is anticipated to be commissioned in 2026. Starting in 2025, the University is planning to initiate procurement of sensor equipment to be installed in the FoF for real-time manufacturing process monitoring and control.

#### 1.1.3 Purpose

The University is seeking qualified vendors to supply FoF sensor equipment and services related to sensor setup, calibration, and training. Due to the variety of research sensors types desired, the University anticipates qualifying multiple firms with diverse capabilities. The result of this RFQ process will be a list of firms qualified to provide some or all the sensor equipment and services required to support initial commissioning of the FoF. Participation is encouraged from large and small organizations that can provide some or all the capabilities described in section 1.1.4.

#### **1.1.4** Specifications & Services

The University is seeking vendors that can demonstrate experience and ability to provide some or all of the following categories of sensor equipment. For each of these categories of sensor equipment, the University is particularly interested in systems that can be integrated with ROS2 via compatible open/free communications library/sdk/api. For each of these sensor equipment categories, the University is interested in vendors that can also provide technical assistance and training in proper setup, calibration, use, and maintenance of the sensor equipment, as well as provide calibration services if required for the sensor equipment.

- 1.1.4.1 Non-Contact Temperature Measurement Devices
  - 1.1.4.1.1 Long-Range IR Cameras
    - a) Radiometric
    - b) Resolution of at least 640x512
    - c) C/C++ or Python SDK
    - d) USB Power+Data
    - e) ~2" cubic size
    - f) <0.5mm/pixel coverage @ 50mm working distance
    - 1.1.4.1.2 Short-Range IR Cameras
      - a) Radiometric
      - b) Resolution of at least 320x256
      - c) C/C++ or Python SDK
      - d) USB Power+Data
      - e) ~2" cubic size
      - f) <0.4mm/pixel coverage @ 20mm working distance
    - 1.1.4.1.3 Pyrometer
      - a) Selectable wavelengths (8-14µm)
      - b) Analog output 4-20mA
      - c) Bi-Directional RS485 digital communications
      - d) Modbus RTU communications
      - e) < 30 watts power consumption
- 1.1.4.2 Contact Temperature Sensors
  - 1.1.4.2.1 Thermocouple wire
    - a) K-type, various gauge options, fiberglass insulation, ANSI MC 96.1 color-coding
- 1.1.4.3 Non-Contact Surface and Dimensional Metrology Instruments
  - 1.1.4.3.1 Short-Range 2D Laser Profilometers
    - a) Blue Laser Class 3R or lower
    - b) C/C++ or Python SDK for communications with head/controller
    - c) 50mm min. clearance distance
    - d) > 50mm measurement range
    - e) 30 40mm near/far field of view
    - f) > 3000 points
    - g) RJ45/IP-based Communications with Controller
  - 1.1.4.3.2 Medium-Range 2D Laser Profilometers
    - a) Blue Laser Class 3R or lower
      - b) C/C++ or Python SDK for communications with head/controller
      - c) 200mm min. clearance distance
      - d) > 300mm measurement range
      - e) 200 500mm near/far field of view
      - f) > 2000 points
    - g) RJ45/IP-based Communications with Controller
  - 1.1.4.3.3 Long-Range 2D Laser Profilometers
    - a) Blue Laser Class 3R or lower
    - b) C/C++ or Python SDK for communications with head/controller
    - c) 1000mm min. clearance distance
    - d) > 300mm measurement range
    - e) 300 700mm near/far field of view

11/22

	f) > 3000 points
	g) RJ45/IP-based Communications
1.1.4.3.4	LiDAR Scanning
	a) Sub-mm accuracies
	b) 1-30m ranges or better
	c) C/C++ or Python SDK for communications
	d) Configurable regions of interest
1.1.4.3.5	e) Ethernet/IP or USB communications
1.1.4.3.5	3D Camera Systems a) Sub-mm accuracies
	b) 1-10m ranges
	c) C/C++ or Python SDK
	d) Ethernet/IP or USB communications
	e) Point cloud output from camera system
	f) Sub-second processing speeds
1.1.4.4 Environme	ntal Monitoring Sensors
1.1.4.4.1	Temperature and Humidity Sensors
	a) 1 second sample rate min.
	b) Calibration certificate
	c) Modbus RTU communication method, or similar
	d) RS485 connectivity, or other serial methods preferred
	e) Temperature and humidity combined unit preferred
1.1.4.4.2	Ultrasonic 3D Anemometers
	a) RS458 connectivity
	<ul><li>b) Modbus RTU communications</li><li>c) 0.01m/s resolution or better</li></ul>
1.1.4.5 Machine V	ision and Visual Imaging Systems
1.1.4.5 Machine v	High-Resolution Color and Greyscale Cameras
1.1.4.3.1	a) USB 3 connectivity
	b) >= 10MP
	c) >= 10fps
	d) Sub-mm pixel coverage at 6', 15', and 30' with
	appropriate lenses
	e) On-camera intra-frame compression availability
	<li>f) Linux UVC and V4L2 compatible, or C/C++ or</li>
	Python SDK
	g) Global shutter preferred
1.1.4.5.2	Low-Resolution Color and Greyscale Cameras
	a) USB 3 connectivity
	b) $\geq 2MP$
	c) >= 10 fps d) Sub mm pixel coverage at $6'$ and $15'$ with
	<ul> <li>d) Sub-mm pixel coverage at 6', and 15' with appropriate lenses</li> </ul>
	e) On-camera intra-frame compression availability
	f) Linux UVC and V4L2 compatible, or C/C++ or
	Python SDK
	g) Global shutter
	h) Independent external trigger
1.1.4.5.3	IP Cameras
	a) On-camera intra-frame compression availability
	b) >= 30fps
	c) 4K resolution or better

	d) Pan, tilt, zoom functionality preferred
	e) JPEG, MJPEG, ONVIF, MPEG4 over RTSP output
	support (or subset)
1.1.4.5.4	3D Pointcloud Generating Camera Systems
	a) 3D point cloud and left/right 2D image data outputs
	b) On-system pointcloud generation and/or pluggable
	external computational support
	c) Depth resolution of <= 0.3mm at 6' min, 0.1mm at 15'
	max preferred
	d) Working range 0.5m-5m
	e) PoE compatible (802.3af/at min)
	f) ROS, OpenCV, PCL support
	g) C/C++ or Python SDK/API
	sition Systems
1.1.4.6.1	General-Purpose Linux SBC
	a) AArch64v8+ CPU Architecture
	b) PoE compatible (802.3af/at min)
	c) GPIO header
	d) >= 1gbps ethernet with PTP support
	<ul><li>e) 1+ Ethernet ports, 2+ USB (&gt;=)3.0 ports</li><li>f) &gt;= 8GB RAM</li></ul>
	g) Flash or NVMe memory support (boot)
	h) Linux Ubuntu support
	i) Real-Time Linux support
1.1.4.6.2	GPU/Hardware Accelerated Linux SBC
	a) AArch64v8+ CPU Architecture
	b) PoE compatible (802.3af/at min)
	c) GPIO header
	d) >= 1gbps ethernet with PTP support
	e) 1+ Ethernet ports, 2+ USB (>=)3.0 ports
	f) >= 8GB RAM
	g) Flash or NVMe memory support (boot)
	h) Linux Ubuntu support
	i) Real-Time Linux support
	j) Hardware video encoding/decoding
	k) Nvidia GPU with Tensor Cores
44400	I) >= 6 CPU Core processor
1.1.4.6.3	General-Purpose Microcontroller Board
	<ul><li>a) STM32-based, &gt;=200MHz, 2+ cores</li><li>b) DMA support</li></ul>
	c) 2+ 16-bit ADC
	d) 2+ 16-bit DAC
	e) Programmable RJ45 port
	<ul><li>f) Programmable Serial port(s)</li></ul>
1.1.4.7 Networking	Equipment
1.1.4.7.1	Router
	a) DHCP Support
	b) 2x 10gbps SFP ports
	c) >= 8 10gbps RJ45 ports
	d) Does not require Internet uplink to operate
	a) Supports wireless meshing of access points

- e) Supports wireless meshing of access points
- f) NTP and PTP support

	g) VLAN Support
1.1.4.7.2	Wireless Access Points
	a) PoE compatible (802.3af/at min)
	b) Wireless meshing functionality
4 4 4 7 0	c) NTP and PTP support
1.1.4.7.3	Layer 3 Network Switches
	a) 24-48x >=5gbps RJ45 ports
	b) PoE+ (802.3at) min support
	c) 2x 10gpbs SFP ports
	d) Managed, unmanaged capable
1.1.4.7.4	e) NTP and PTP support Layer 2 Network Switches
1.1.4.7.4	a) 48x >=5gbps RJ45 ports
	b) PoE+ (802.3at) min support
	c) 2x 10gpbs SFP ports
	d) Unmanaged
	e) NTP and PTP support
1.1.4.8 High-Perfo	rmance Computing Systems
1.1.4.8.1	Compute Node
	a) 32c/64t CPU (min, single or dual CPU)
	b) 64GB RAM (up to 1TB)
	c) RAID1 NVMe Boot, 512GB min
	d) x1+ Nvidia RTX 4000 Ada (or better)
	e) 1+1 Redundant 120v/240v PSU
	f) x4+ Front-bay hot-swap 3.5" SAS drives with
	hardware RAID controller (No drives necessary)
	g) Remote Management system (iDRAC, IPMI, etc)
	h) 1x >=10gbps RJ45 port
	i) 2x >=1gbps RJ45 port
	j) TPM 2.0
	<ul> <li>k) Linux (Ubuntu/RedHat) compatible</li> </ul>
1.1.4.8.2	Storage Node
	a) 32c/64t CPU (min, single or dual CPU)
	b) 64GB RAM (up to 1TB)
	c) RAID1 NVMe Boot, 512GB min
	d) 1+1 Redundant 120v/240v PSU
	e) x30+ 3.5" SATA/SAS drive support backplane
	f) Hardware RAID for storage preferred, with RAID

- Hardware RAID for storage preferred, with RAID 50/60 support
- g) x2 10gbps RJ45 ports
- h) x1 >=25gbps RJ45 ports

# 1.2 General Information

- **1.2.1** Contract Administration and Conditions
  - 1.2.1.1 Vendors qualified through this RFQ process may be required to execute a contract in the form of a University of Maine System Master Agreement. A Master Agreement template has been included as Attachment A of this RFQ.

The Master Agreement entered into by the parties shall consist of the University of Maine System Master Agreement, the RFQ, the Contractor's submission including all appendices or attachments and clarifications, the specifications including all modifications thereof, and a Purchase Order or Letter of Agreement requiring signatures of the University and the Contractor, all of which shall be referred to collectively as the Agreement Documents.

In the event of a conflict of terms, the following precedence will apply:

- 1. University of Maine System Master Agreement
- 2. Agreement Riders (as required)
- 3. Contract Amendments (as required)
- 4. The University's RFQ
- 5. Contractor's Submission
- 6. Purchase Order or Letter of Agreement (if applicable)
- 1.2.1.2 Modification of the Agreement terms and conditions are permitted except that the University, due to its public nature, will not:
  - a. Provide any defense, hold harmless or indemnity;
  - b. Waive any statutory or constitutional immunity;
  - c. Apply the law of a state other than Maine;
  - d. Procure types or amounts of insurance beyond those UMS already maintains or waive any rights of subrogation;
  - e. Add any entity as an additional insured to UMS policies of insurance;
  - f. Pay attorneys' fees, costs, expenses, or liquidated damages;
  - g. Promise confidentiality in a manner contrary to Maine's Freedom of Access Act (FOAA);
  - h. Permit an entity to unilaterally change any term or condition once the contract is signed;
  - i. Accept any references to terms and conditions, privacy policies, or any other websites, documents or conditions referenced outside of the contract; or
  - j. Agree to automatic renewals for term(s) greater than month-to-month.
- 1.2.1.3 By submitting a response to a Request for Qualifications, bid or other offer to do business with the University, the Respondent understands and agrees that:
  - a. The above Agreement provisions (Section 1.2.1.2) will not be modified and are thereby incorporated into any agreement entered into between University and the Respondent; that such terms and condition shall control in the event of any

conflict with such agreement; and that the Respondent will not propose or demand any contrary terms;

- b. The above Agreement provisions (Section 1.2.1.2) will govern the interpretation of such agreement notwithstanding the expression of any other term and/or condition to the contrary;
- c. The Respondent agrees that the resulting Agreement will be the entire agreement between the University (including University's employees and other End Users) and Respondent and in the event that the Respondent requires terms of use agreements or other agreements, policies or understanding, whether on an order form, invoice, website, electronic, click-through, verbal or in writing, with University's employees or other End Users, such agreements shall be null, void and without effect, and the terms of the Agreement shall apply;
- d. The Respondent will identify at the time of submission which, if any, portions of submitted materials are entitled to "trade secret" exemption from disclosure under Maine's FOAA; that failure to so identify will authorize UMS to conclude that no portions are so exempt; and that the Respondent will defend, indemnify and hold harmless UMS in any and all legal actions that seek to compel UMS to disclose under Maine's Freedom of Access Act some or all submitted materials and/or contract, if any, executed between UMS and the Respondent.

#### **1.2.2** Communication with the University

It is the responsibility of the Respondent to inquire about any requirement of this document that is not understood. Responses to inquiries, if they change or clarify the document in a substantial manner, will be forwarded by addenda to all parties that have received a copy of the document. Addenda will also be posted on our web site:

#### www.maine.edu/strategic/upcoming\_bids.php

It is the responsibility of all Respondents to check the web site before submitting a response to ensure that they have all pertinent documents. The University will not be bound by oral responses to inquiries or written responses other than addenda.

Inquiries must be made using the **Response Contact Information** provided on the cover sheet of this document. Refer to table in **Section 1.3.1 Timeline of Key Events** for deadline requirements.

#### 1.2.3 Confidentiality

The University must adhere to the provisions of the Maine FOAA, 1 MRSA §401 et seq. As a condition of submitting a response under this section, a respondent must accept that, to the extent required by the Maine FOAA, responses to this solicitation, and any ensuing contractual documents, are considered public records and therefore are subject to freedom of access requests.

The information contained in responses submitted for the University's consideration will be held in confidence until all evaluations are concluded and qualified vendors are selected (the successful Respondents). At that time, the

University will issue award notice letters to all participating Respondents and all Respondents' responses may be made available to participating Respondents upon request. Such request must be made by submitting a written request to the individual noted in the Response Contact Information shown on the cover sheet of this document, with a copy of the request provided to the other Respondents. Such requests are public records.

After the protest period has passed and any Agreements are fully executed, responses will be available for public inspection upon request.

The University will honor requests for confidentiality for information that meets the definition of "trade secret" under Maine law. Clearly mark any portion of submitted materials which are entitled to "trade secret" exemption from disclosure under Maine FOAA. Failure to so identify as trade secret will authorize the University to conclude that no portions are so exempt; and that the Respondent will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the University in any and all legal actions that seek to compel the University to disclose under Maine FOAA some or all submitted materials and/or contract, if any, executed between the University and the Respondent.

#### 1.2.4 Costs of Preparation

Respondents are required to assume all costs of preparation of the response and any presentations necessary to the response process.

#### **1.2.5** Authorization

Any Agreement for services that will, or may, result in the expenditure by the University of \$50,000 or more must be approved in writing by the Office of Strategic Procurement, Executive Director of Strategic Procurement and Services and is not approved, valid or effective until such written approval is granted.

#### 1.2.6 Employees

The Contractor shall employ only competent and satisfactory personnel and shall provide a sufficient number of employees to perform the required services efficiently and in a manner satisfactory to the University. If the Agreement Administrator or designee, notifies the Contractor in writing that any person employed on this Agreement is incompetent, disorderly, or otherwise unsatisfactory, such person shall not again be employed in the execution of this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Agreement Administrator.

#### **1.2.7** Environment Compliance

In the event that the resulting Agreement involves the generation, transportation, handling, disposal, and/or other operations or activities in relation to toxic, hazardous, radioactive, or otherwise dangerous gases, vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, wastes, contaminants, and/or other substance, material, or condition, the Contractor agrees to indemnify save harmless and defend the University from and against all liabilities, claims, damages, forfeitures, suits, and the costs and expenses incident thereto (including costs of defense, settlement and reasonable attorney's fees) which the University may hereafter incur as a result of death, bodily injuries, damage to any property, contamination or adverse effects of the environment, or any violation of state or federal regulations, laws

(including without limitation the Resources Conservation and Recovery Act, the Hazardous Material Transportation Act or the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act, as the same now exists or may hereafter be amended), or order based on or arising in whole or in part from the Contractor's performance under the Agreement; provided, however, the Contractor shall not indemnify the University for any liabilities, claims, damages, (as set forth above) caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the University, or arising out of any area of responsibility not attributable to Contractor.

#### 1.2.8 Specification Protest Process and Remedies:

If a Respondent feels that the specifications are written in a way that limits competition, a specification protest may be sent to the Office of Strategic Procurement to the email address provided on the cover page of this document. Specification Protests will be responded to within five (5) business days of receipt. Determination of protest validity is at the sole discretion of the University. The due date of the proposal may be changed if necessary to allow consideration of the protest issuance and of any necessary addenda. Specification protests shall be presented to the University in writing as soon as identified, but no less than five (5) business days prior to the Deadline for Proposal Submission noted in Section 1.3.1. No protest against the award due to the specifications shall be considered after this deadline. Protests shall include the reason for the protest and any proposed changes to the specifications.

# **1.3 General Submission Process and Provisions**

#### 1.3.1 Submission Process

The following process will be used for collecting responses:

- 1. University advertises RFQ.
- 2. Respondents provide written questions to the University for clarification (if needed).
- 3. University responds to questions.
- 4. Respondents provide electronic submissions to RFQ.
- 5. University reviews submissions and notifies Respondents if they are selected for the Qualified Vendor List.

#### **1.3.2** Timeline of Key Events

Event Name	Event Due Date
University issues RFQ	June 5, 2025
Respondents submit written questions	June 13, 2025
University responds to questions	June 16, 2025
RFQ submissions due from Respondents	June 26, 2025
University notify Respondents of July 7, 2025 (Subject	
selections for Qualified Vendor List	to change)

#### **1.3.3** Eligibility to Submit Responses

Public entities, private for-profit companies, and non-profit companies and institutions are invited to submit a response to this document.

The University anticipates qualifying multiple respondents through this RFQ process to best serve the varying needs of the institution. The University understands that not all firms will have expertise in all the areas listed and encourages submissions from firms who have experience in a subset of the skillsets.

#### 1.3.4 Debarment

Respondents must complete and submit the "Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification" provided in Appendix B. Failure to provide this certification may result in the disqualification of the Respondent's proposal, at the University's discretion.

Submission of a signed response to this solicitation is certification that the Respondent (or any subcontractor) is not currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any State or Federal department or agency. Submission is also agreement that the University will be notified of any change in this status.

#### **1.3.5** Response Understanding

By submitting a response, the Respondent agrees and assures that the specifications are adequate, and the Respondent accepts the terms and conditions herein. Any exceptions shall be noted in the response.

#### **1.3.6** Non-Response Submission

The University will not consider non-responsive submissions, i.e., those with material deficiencies, omissions, errors or inconsistencies or that otherwise do not follow instructions. The University in its sole discretion will determine what is non-responsive.

#### 1.3.7 Response Submission

A SIGNED virus-free electronic copy must be submitted as follows:

- The response must be received electronically to the E-Mail shown in the Response Submission Information section of the cover page of this document.
- Electronic submission must be received by the required **Response Deadline Date/Time** reflected on the cover page of this document.
- Response submissions that exceed 20 MB will be submitted with multiple emails modifying email subject line shown in the **Response Submission Information** section of the cover page of this document to include: Submission 1 of X ('X' representing the number of files being submitted).

# 2.0 EVALUATION PROCESS AND QUALIFIED VENDOR LIST

## 2.1 Evaluation Process

#### 2.1.1 Response Evaluation

The University will evaluate responses to determine if the Respondents are qualified to provide some or all of the goods and services listed in this RFQ. A Qualified Vendor List will be created based on this evaluation. The University will

engage with Qualified Vendors to negotiate and put Agreements in place at its discretion. The Qualified Vendor List will be valid for 5 years form the date it is posted publicly.

- 2.1.2 Evaluation Section Descriptions
  - 2.1.2.1 Submission Materials
    - The University's evaluation team will use a consensus approach to evaluate responses.

### 2.2 Award

The University reserves the right to waive minor irregularities, which may include contacting the Respondent to resolve the irregularity. Scholarships, donations, or gifts to the University, will not be considered in the evaluation of responses. The University reserves the right to cancel this request or reject any or all responses, in whole or in part, if responses are contrary to the best interests of the University. Should the University determine in its sole discretion that only one Respondent is fully qualified, or that one Respondent is clearly more qualified than any other under consideration, an Agreement may be awarded to that Respondent without further action.

## 2.3 Negotiations

The University reserves the right to negotiate with the successful Respondent to finalize an Agreement. Such negotiations may not significantly vary the content, nature or requirements of the proposal or the University's RFQ. <u>The University reserves the right to</u> terminate contract negotiations with a selected respondent who submits a proposed contract significantly different from the response they submitted in response to the <u>advertised RFQ</u>. In the event that an acceptable contract cannot be negotiated with the highest ranked Respondent, the University may withdraw its award and negotiate with the next-highest ranked Respondent, and so on, until an acceptable contract has been finalized. Alternatively, the University may cancel the RFQ, at its sole discretion.

## 2.4 Award Protest

Respondents may appeal the award decision by submitting a written protest to the University of Maine System's Chief General Services Officer within five (5) business days of the date of the award notice, with a copy of the protest to the successful Respondent. The protest must contain a statement of the basis for the challenge. Further information regarding the appeal process can be found at:

http://staticweb.maine.edu/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/APL\_VII-A\_20150630-FINAL.pdf?565a1d

If this RFQ results in the creation of a pre-qualified or pre-approved list of vendors, then the appeal procedures mentioned above are available upon the original determination of that vendor list, but not during subsequent competitive procedures involving only the prequalified or pre-approved list participants.

# **3.0 RESPONSE FORMAT REQUIREMENTS**

# 3.1 General Format Instructions

#### 3.1.1 Electronic Submissions

Documents submitted as part of the electronic response are to be prepared on standard electronic formats. Links to additional content available in the public domain (Respondent websites, videos, etc.) is allowed.

For clarity, the Respondent's name should appear on every document page, including Appendices. Each Appendix must reference the section or subsection number to which it corresponds.

#### 3.1.2 Respondents Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the Respondent to provide <u>all</u> information requested in the document package <u>at the time of submission</u>. Failure to provide information requested in this document may, at the discretion of the University's evaluation team, result in a lower rating for the incomplete sections and may result in the response being disqualified for consideration. Responses must include any forms provided in the application package or reproductions of those forms as closely as possible. All information should be presented in the same order and format as described in this document.

## 3.2 **Response Format Instructions**

This section contains instructions for Respondents to use in preparing their response. The Respondent's submission must follow the outline used below, including the numbering of section and sub-section headings. Failure to use the outline specified in this section or respond to all instructions throughout this document may result in the response being disqualified as non-responsive or receiving a reduced score.

The University and its evaluation team for this document have sole discretion to determine whether a variance from the document specifications should result in either disqualification or reduction in scoring of a response.

Re-phrasing of the content provided in this document will, at best, be considered minimally responsive. The University seeks detailed yet succinct responses that demonstrate the Respondent's experience and ability to perform the requirements specified throughout this document.

#### 3.2.1 Section 1 - Response Cover Page

- 3.2.1.1 Insert Appendix A University of Maine System Response Cover Page (Label this "Section 1")
- 3.2.1.2 Insert Appendix B Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification (Label this "Section 1")

#### 3.2.2 Section 2 – Submission Materials

3.2.2.1 Insert Appendix C – Submission Materials

# Appendix A – University of Maine System Response Cover Page

#### RFQ #2025-092 Factory of the Future Sensor Equipment and Services Vendor

Organization Name:	
Chief Executive – Name/Title:	
Telephone:	
Fax:	
Email:	
Headquarters Street Address:	
Headquarters City/State/Zip:	
Lead Point of Contact for Quote –	
Name/Title:	
Telephone:	
Fax:	
Email:	
Street Address:	
City/State/Zip:	

- 1. No personnel currently employed by the University or any other University agency participated, either directly or indirectly, in any activities relating to the preparation of the Respondent's response.
- 2. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Respondent to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to submit a response.
- 3. The undersigned is authorized to enter into contractual obligations on behalf of the above-named organization.
- 4. By submitting a response to this Request for Qualifications, or other offer to do business with the University your entity understands and agrees that:
  - a. The Agreement provisions in **Section 1.2.1** of this document will not be modified and are thereby incorporated into any agreement entered into between University and your entity; that such terms and condition shall control in the event of any conflict with such agreement; and that your entity will not propose or demand any contrary terms;
  - b. The above Agreement provisions in **Section 1.2.1** of this document will govern the interpretation of such agreement notwithstanding the expression of any other term and/or condition to the contrary;
  - c. Your entity agrees that the resulting Agreement will be the entire agreement between the University (including University's employees and other End Users) and Respondent and in the event that the Respondent requires terms of use agreements or other agreements, policies or understanding, whether on an order form, invoice, website, electronic, click-through, verbal or in writing, with University's employees or other End Users, such agreements shall be null, void and without effect, and the terms of the Agreement shall apply.
  - d. Your entity will identify at the time of submission which, if any, portion or your submitted materials are entitled to "trade secret" exemption from disclosure under Maine's Freedom of Access Act; that failure to so identify will authorize UMS to conclude that no portions are so exempt; and that your entity will defend, indemnify and hold harmless UMS in any and all legal actions that seek to compel UMS to disclose under Maine's Freedom of Access Act some or all of your submitted materials and/or contract, if any, executed between UMS and your entity.

To the best of my knowledge all information provided in the enclosed response, both programmatic and financial, is complete and accurate at the time of submission.

Date:

Name and Title (Printed)

Authorized Signature

University of Maine System RFQ Rev. 04/15/2023

# Appendix B – Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification

# University of Maine System DEBARMENT, PERFORMANCE and NON-COLLUSION CERTIFICATION

#### RFQ #2025-092

Factory of the Future Sensor Equipment and Services Vendor

By signing this document, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the aforementioned organization, its principals and any subcontractors named in this proposal:

- a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from bidding or working on contracts issued by any governmental agency.
- b. Have not, within three years of submitting the proposal for this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for:
  - i. Fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state or local government transaction or contract;
  - ii. Violating Federal or State antitrust statutes or committing embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
  - iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and
  - iv. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal had one or more federal, state or local government transactions terminated for cause or default.
- c. Have not entered into a prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and this proposal is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. The above mentioned entities understand and agree that collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards.

Failure to provide this certification may result in the disqualification of the Respondent's proposal, at the University's discretion.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Name and Title (Printed)

Authorized Signature

University of Maine System RFQ Rev. 04/15/2023

# **Appendix C – Submission Materials**

Respondent's Organization Name:

**INSTRUCTIONS**: Respondents shall ensure that all information required herein is submitted with the response. All information provided should be verifiable by documentation requested by the University. Failure to provide all information, inaccuracy or misstatement may be sufficient cause for rejection of the response or rescission of an award.

#### **Submission Sections**

- I. <u>Company bio:</u> Provide a brief description of your organization, including location, number of employees, history, and core competencies.
- II. <u>Capabilities:</u> For any category of sensor equipment listed in Section 1.1.4 of this RFQ, Respondents shall identify and provide supporting information for each category that they feel qualified to provide sensor equipment that meets the listed minimum specifications, and/or associated services for assistance and training in the setup, calibration, use, and maintenance of the sensor equipment. Respondents are encouraged to provide or link to technical data sheets on specific sensor equipment that they offer, including details about data formats available from the sensors. Respondents are only required to respond to the sensor categories they feel qualified to provide equipment or services for.
- III. <u>Additional Capabilities:</u> Describe any additional capabilities / expertise not identified in Section II which would benefit this initiative.
- IV. <u>General:</u> Describe why your organization is best positioned to provide the services described in your submission.
- V. <u>Terms and Conditions:</u> Please indicate whether or your organization will accept our standard terms and conditions found here, <u>https://www.maine.edu/strategic-procurement/doing-business/purchase-order-terms-and-conditions/</u>.
- VI. <u>Vendor Terms and Conditions:</u> Please include a copy of any terms and conditions that would apply to purchases the University makes from you.